SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING Thursday, February 22, 2024

Chair Nobari started the Executive Committee meeting at 12:05 PM.

Committee Members Present

Kimberly Brandon, Immediate Past Chair Amy Chan, Chair, Audit Committee Don Endo, Chair, Investment Committee John Gumas, Chair, Development Committee Mary Huss, Vice Chair Jeff Jackanicz, Foundation President Don Nasser, Chair, Athletics Committee Neda Nobari, Board Chair Debra Plousha Moore, Committee on Directors

Committee Members Absent and Excused

Vince Anicetti, Chair, Public Affairs Committee Don Endo, Chair, Investment Committee

Others Present

Anjali Billa, Associate Vice President for Development, SF State University Venesia Thompson-Ramsay, Secretary & Treasurer

- I. **Public Comments**: There were no public comments.
- II. **Review of Agenda:** The committee reviewed the meeting agenda. On motion duly made, seconded, and unanimously carried, the following Minute Action was taken:

MINUTE ACTION: that the committee approves the meeting agenda, as prepared.

Motion by: Debra Plousha Moore Seconded by: Don Nasser Motion: Passed

III. **Approval of Meeting Minutes:** The committee reviewed the minutes from the November 16, 2023. On motion duly made, seconded, and unanimously carried, the following Minute Action was taken:

MINUTE ACTION: that the committee approves the minutes, as prepared.

Motion by: <u>Debra Plousha Moore</u> Seconded by: <u>Mary Huss</u> Motion: <u>Passed</u>

IV. Operating Business:

A. <u>Campus Update</u>: Jackanicz provided an update since the last Executive Committee meeting, as follows:

He mentioned that after almost 20 years at San Francisco State, Jason Porth, Vice President for University Enterprises and Executive Director of the University Corporation was moving into a new position off campus – Executive Director of a family grantmaking Trust in Marin supporting Jewish organizations and promoting democracy worldwide. Jackanicz said Porth's last day with the University was March 8. He said President Mahoney was in the process of working through transition planning and he expected to have relevant announcements about that fairly soon.

Jackanicz provided an update on the CSU budget situation. He said the financial picture had continued to grow more stark in the recent months because of: 1) the deteriorating budget situation in the State of California - the Legislative Analyst's Office released a new budget memo projecting upwards of an \$80 billion dollar deficit for the State. He said that as a result of the difficult budget situation, some components of the compact, which was a multiyear agreement that the Governor had signed with the CSU, were being delayed or deferred with the Governor pledging to make it up to the CSU the following year and 2) declining enrollments across the system. Jackanicz said the system, as a whole, was down 6% in its enrollments relative to 2019 (pre-pandemic baseline). Jackanicz said some campuses were having larger decreases in enrollment than others. He said, generally speaking, campuses in Northern California, including SF State, were having a greater challenge than campuses in Southern California, just by virtue of where the State's population lived. He then showed a recently released graphic report that showed undergraduate enrollment across all 23 campuses of the CSU. He pointed out that San Francisco State had the 5th largest decrease in enrollment since 2019 (a 20% decrease/ net loss of 5,000 students annually). Jackanicz said that some of the things that were particularly challenging and driving this number for San Francisco State were: 1) the total cost of attendance (cost of housing and living expenses associated with going to school in the arguably most expensive housing market in the State) and 2) the fact that fewer and fewer families in the immediate Bay Area were having kids. He said the Bay Area was a very expensive place to have and raise children and a significant number of SF State's students (about 60%) came from the immediate Bay Area and as that demographic pool shrunk, it placed some additional challenges on the university as well. Jackanicz said the university was a \$23 million deficit in the next fiscal year (2024-2025) and an addition deficit of about \$17 million the year after that (2025-2026). He said, as such, significant numbers of reductions were needed primarily on the Academic Affairs side. He said the university needed right size the faculty, academic departments and divisions based on where the students were.

Jackanicz also shared that after months of intense negotiations, the California Faculty Association agreed to the CSU's contract. He said this meant that the CSU had successfully negotiated contracts with all of its unions. He said that the agreements meant some large compensation increases across the board. He said CSU faculty and staff were woefully underpaid relative to the market (about 20% below market based on the CSU-commissioned Mercer study). He said this was part of the reason for the financial challenges the System was facing, but that it had to be done not only to retain valued employees but frankly because it was the humane and ethical thing to do.

Jackanicz closed with the following additional updates:

Science and Engineering Innovation Center: Jackanicz announced that the dedication ceremony for the Science and Engineering Innovation Center was scheduled for September 18, 2024. He said the facility represented an expansion of the university's work in science and technology and would serve as a new front door from the community into the campus.

Super Sunday and Partnership: He mentioned the university's participation in Super Sunday on February 26, where they would announce a partnership with the San Francisco Community Foundation to support black students attending San Francisco State. Jackanicz said the partnership aimed to provide funding opportunities for black students in a manner compliant with Proposition 209.

National Conference on Sustainable Investing: Jackanicz said he attended a conference on sustainable investing where he led a panel on integrating racial justice and climate sustainability into investment policies. He said the university's investment policies received positive attention at the conference.

Advocacy in Sacramento: Jackanicz said President Mahoney advocated in Sacramento to ensure that the State Legislature and Governor fulfilled their promises regarding funding for higher education.

- B. <u>Director Transitions</u>: Jackanicz informed the Executive Committee that Dottie Simmons, Ted Griggs, David Serrano Sewell and Camilla Smith were cycling off the board by the end of the fiscal year. Regarding Smith, Jackanicz said the Committee on Directors planned to bring a recommendation to the Executive Committee at its May meeting to bestow Director Emerita status on Smith in recognition of her extraordinary service. Finally, Jackanicz said the decisions to cycle off the board were both personal and professional.
- C. Quasi-Endowments: Thompson-Ramsay presented a \$150,000 request from the Leah Morris Freedman Foundation Trust to the Executive Committee. She said the request met the criteria for being quasi-endowed, as per the foundation's policy that when a bequest exceeded \$25,000 and the donor does not specify whether it should be endowed or not, the default was to endow the gift. She said that exceptions to the policy could be made (i.e. directing funds to existing funds for ease of administration). Thompson-Ramsay said that, in this case, the request to the Executive Committee was to quasi-endow the gift and direct the payouts to fund #47861, the Morrison Chamber Music Center Fund. On motion duly made, seconded, and unanimously carried, the following Minute Action was taken:

MINUTE ACTION: that the Committee adopts Resolution #BOD 022224-1.

Motion by: <u>Debra Plousha Moore</u> Seconded by: <u>Don Nasser</u> Motion: <u>Passed</u>

D. March Retreat & Business Meeting Agenda: Jackanicz outlined the agenda for the upcoming board retreat in Half Moon Bay, CA. He said the retreat would commence with a cocktail reception and dinner, followed by a documentary screening by an alumnus and faculty member, Jay Rosenblatt. He said the next day would focus on the themes of growth, community, and continuity, starting with team-building exercises and discussions about

board members' passions and desired return on service. He also shared that Tom Mullaney and Steve Kelton would present on planned giving at San Francisco State, followed by a business meeting to present officers for the forthcoming fiscal year and check-in on the strategic plan. Jackanicz said the day would conclude with a reception.

V. Committee on Directors: Plousha Moore presented the report. She said the Committee on Directors last met via Zoom on November 16, 2023. She provided updates from the meeting, including the development of a dashboard to capture board members' interests, industry, and experience to enhance recruitment efforts. Plousha Moore also reviewed a resolution to confer director emerita status on Camilla Smith and asked the Executive Committee to recommend approval by the full board at its June 12, 2024 meeting. On motion duly made, seconded, and unanimously carried, the following Minute Action was taken:

MINUTE ACTION: that the committee recommends the conferral of director emerita status on Camilla Smith for the Board of Directors of the San Francisco State University Foundation.

Motion by: <u>Amy Chan</u> Seconded by: <u>Mary Huss</u> Motion: <u>Passed</u>

Plousha Moore presented Tina Herrera as a board candidate with an impressive background in community service, leadership, and academic experience, particularly in the sciences. She said the Committee on Directors unanimously supported her nomination with the caveat that she met with members of the committee. Plousha Moore then asked the Executive Committee to recommend approval of her candidacy by the full board at its June 12, 2024 meeting. On motion duly made, seconded, and unanimously carried, the following Minute Action was taken:

MINUTE ACTION: that the committee recommends approval of Tina Herrera's candidacy to the Board of Directors of the San Francisco State University Foundation.

Motion by: <u>Amy Chan</u> Seconded by: <u>Kimberly Brandon</u> Motion: <u>Passed</u>

Plousha Moore presented Okorie Ramsey as a potential board candidate with a strong background in accounting and business leadership. She said that while currently active with the Lam Family College of Business Advisory Council, Ramsey was new to the San Francisco State perspective, offering potential value to the Foundation Board. Jackanicz said the recruitment process for Olivier Ramsey was in a different stage compared to Tina Herrera's. He said further exploration and engagement were needed before bringing Ramsey's candidacy to the full board. He said that both the Committee of Directors and the Executive Committee had approved the nomination of Ramsey, allowing time for everyone to get to know him at a pace that aligned with the foundation's needs and that was meaningful for the candidate.

VI. Audit Committee: Chan said the Committee met in late October 2023 to review the auditor's report and the Foundation's financial statements for the previous fiscal year. She said the auditor's report was clean, and the financial statements were deemed satisfactory. She said the reports had been uploaded to the Foundation's website for access and review by all stakeholders. Chan acknowledged staff for their hard work in collaborating with the

auditors, highlighting their crucial role in the Foundation's operations. Looking ahead, she said the Committee was currently preparing for the Foundation's annual informational return, due in mid-May. She said drafts would be submitted for the board's review by early May. Additionally, Chan said preparations for the annual audit cycle would commence in late April with the audit cycle expected to run through May, overlapping with the filing deadlines for the informational returns. Finally, Chan said the Committee would schedule a pre-audit kickoff meeting and keep all stakeholders updated on the progress.

- VII. Committee on Athletics: Nasser reported that the Athletics Committee convened in January, primarily to discuss phase II of the Pivot contract that would identify corporate naming and sponsorship opportunities for the University as well as priority funding for athletics, particularly focusing on the baseball program's financial needs. Nasser said that, at the meeting, Jackanicz provided an overview of the scope of work for this phase, which involved preparing documents for the program. He said the contract came to \$30,000.
- VIII. **Development Committee**: Gumas reported that the Development Committee recently met and reviewed the Request for Proposals (RFP) that would be sent out to consultants to prepare for the University's next fundraising campaign. Gumas said the Foundation was seeking proposals from consultants who would help determine the University's readiness as well as the goal and strategy for the next campaign.
- IX. Investment Committee: Jackanicz provided the report in Endo's absence. He said the Investment Committee recently met and decided to retain a consulting firm named North Pier to assist in the process of evaluating applications from firms competing to be the foundation's next investment advisor or Outsourced Chief Investment Officer (OCIO). Jackanicz said North Pier would provide expertise in evaluating applications, conducting due diligence, and facilitating presentations from finalists to the Investment Committee. He said the decision to work with North Pier was unanimous, and the committee was optimistic about the collaboration. Jackanicz also provided an update on market performance. He said that as of December 31, 2023, the endowment had rebounded to \$161 million from \$149 million at the end of September 2023. He said the committee also approved two investment recommendations totaling \$4 million. Jackanicz said both commitments aligned with the foundation's investment policy statement. On motion duly made, seconded, and unanimously carried, the following Minute Action was taken:

MINUTE ACTION: that the committee approves a contract with North Pier in the amount of \$54,500 for investment advisory evaluative services.

Motion by: Mary Huss Seconded by: Don Endo Motion: Passed

X. Public Affairs Committee: Jackanicz provided the report in Anicetti's absence. He said the Public Affairs Committee received an update from the Office of Government and Community Relations on the CSU advocacy calendar, highlighting the work that would be done alongside President Mahoney to engage elected officials on the budget. Jackanicz said this included a recent trip to Sacramento and plans for a visit to Washington, DC in April for advocacy day with Congress and agency heads. Additionally, Jackanicz said the committee agreed to send a copy of the latest edition of the San Francisco State magazine and a letter to

each elected official, encouraging them to keep the university on their radar and thanking them for their continued support. He said that updates on advocacy efforts would be provided to the committee following these events and activities, and guidance on next steps and follow-up would be sought.

XI. Other Business: None.

XII. **Adjournment:** The meeting was adjourned at 1:41 PM, without objections.

Respectfully submitted,

DocuSigned by:

05/28/2024 | 1:28 PM PDT

Neda Nobari, Chair Date

DocuSign

Certificate Of Completion

Envelope Id: DD4EFA7ECF4F430D990461947999F05B

Subject: Complete with DocuSign: Executive Committee Mtg Minutes 2.22.2024 approved.docx

Source Envelope:

Document Pages: 6 Signatures: 1
Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0

AutoNav: Enabled

Envelopeld Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

Status: Completed

Envelope Originator:

Venesia Thompson-Ramsay

1600 Holloway Ave Administration 17A

San Francisco, CA 94132

venesia@sfsu.edu
IP Address: 24.4.49.236

Record Tracking

Status: Original Holder: Venesia Thompson-Ramsay Location: DocuSign

W

C102C37753DD479...

venesia@sfsu.edu

Timestamp

Signer Events

Neda Nobari nnobari@me.com

5/28/2024 1:25:04 PM

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(Optional)

Signature

Sent: 5/28/2024 1:26:12 PM Viewed: 5/28/2024 1:28:15 PM Signed: 5/28/2024 1:28:24 PM

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device Using IP Address: 172.90.225.161

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Accepted: 5/28/2024 1:28:15 PM

ID: 347bfa10-55d1-4549-8e77-8a8060f975e1

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

COPIED

COPIED

Jamie Oppenheim

 ${\sf Jamie oppen heim@sfsu.edu}$

Director of Communication, Foundation and Alumni

Engagement

San Francisco State University

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(Optional)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Not Offered via DocuSign

Caroline Johansson cjoh@sfsu.edu

Senior Director, Advancement Services

San Francisco State University

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(Optional)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Not Offered via DocuSign

Sent: 5/28/2024 1:28:25 PM

Sent: 5/28/2024 1:28:26 PM Viewed: 5/29/2024 8:38:18 AM

Witness Events	Signature	Timestamp	
Notary Events	Signature	Timestamp	
Envelope Summary Events	Status	Timestamps	
Envelope Sent	Hashed/Encrypted	5/28/2024 1:26:13 PM	
Certified Delivered	Security Checked	5/28/2024 1:28:15 PM	
Signing Complete	Security Checked	5/28/2024 1:28:24 PM	
Completed	Security Checked	5/28/2024 1:28:26 PM	
Payment Events	Status	Timestamps	
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure			

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE

From time to time, San Francisco State University (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through your DocuSign, Inc. (DocuSign) Express user account. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to these terms and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the 'I agree' button at the bottom of this document.

Getting paper copies

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available electronically to you by us. For such copies, as long as you are an authorized user of the DocuSign system you will have the ability to download and print any documents we send to you through your DocuSign user account for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a \$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below.

Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures electronically is described below.

Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of your DocuSign account. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use your DocuSign Express user account to receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents from us.

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically

Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide electronically to you through your DocuSign user account all required notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures electronically from us.

How to contact San Francisco State University:

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:

To contact us by email send messages to: jpleung@sfsu.edu

To advise San Francisco State University of your new e-mail address

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at jpleung@sfsu.edu and in the body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail address. We do not require any other information from you to change your email address..

In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc to arrange for your new email address to be reflected in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in DocuSign.

To request paper copies from San Francisco State University

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to jpleung@sfsu.edu and in the body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.

To withdraw your consent with San Francisco State University

To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic format you may:

- i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign account, and on the subsequent page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;
- ii. send us an e-mail to jpleung@sfsu.edu and in the body of such request you must state your e-mail, full name, IS Postal Address, telephone number, and account number. We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent.. The consequences of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software

Operating Systems:	Windows2000? or WindowsXP?	
Browsers (for SENDERS):	Internet Explorer 6.0? or above	
Browsers (for SIGNERS):	Internet Explorer 6.0?, Mozilla FireFox 1.0, NetScape 7.2 (or above)	
Email:	Access to a valid email account	
Screen Resolution:	800 x 600 minimum	
Enabled Security Settings:	Allow per session cookies	

• Users accessing the internet behind a Proxy Server must enable HTTP 1.1 settings via proxy connection

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you were able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to e-mail this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above, please let us know by clicking the 'I agree' button below.

By checking the 'I Agree' box, I confirm that:

- I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and
- I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can print it, for future reference and access; and
- Until or unless I notify San Francisco State University as described above, I consent to
 receive from exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations,
 acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
 available to me by San Francisco State University during the course of my relationship
 with you.

^{**} These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, we will provide you with an email message at the email address we have on file for you at that time providing you with the revised hardware and software requirements, at which time you will have the right to withdraw your consent.